
 

 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

AUGUST 28, 2012 
 

 

The Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of McKinney, Texas met in 

regular session in the Council Chambers of the Municipal Building on Tuesday, August 

28, 2012 at 6:30 p.m.  

Commissioner Members Present: Chairman Robert S. Clark, Vice-Chairman 

Lance Lindsay, George Bush, Rick Franklin, Matt Hilton, David Kochalka, and Larry 

Thompson. 

Staff Present: Director of Planning Michael Quint, Senior Planners Brandon 

Opiela and Ross Altobelli, and Administrative Assistant Terri Ramey. 

There were approximately 20 guests present.  

Chairman Clark called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. after determining a 

quorum was present.  

Chairman Clark explained the format and procedures of the meeting, as well as 

the role of the Commission. He announced that some of the items considered by the 

Commission on this date would be only heard by the Planning and Zoning Commission 

and others could be forwarded on to City Council. Chairman Clark stated that he would 

advise the audience if the case will go on to City Council or be heard only by the 

Planning and Zoning Commission. He requested that applicants and Staff limit their 

remarks to ten minutes each and that guests limit their remarks to three minutes and 

speak only once. Chairman Clark explained that there is a timer located on the podium, 

and when one minute of the speaker’s time is remaining, the light will switch from yellow 

to red and a buzzer will sound. He asked that everyone treat others with respect, be 

concise in all comments, and avoid over talking issues.  

The Commission unanimously approved the motion by Commissioner Rick 

Franklin, seconded by Commissioner Larry Thompson, to approve the following 

Consent Item: 

12-682  Minutes of the Planning and Zoning Commission 
Regular Meeting of August 14, 2012.  

 
 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES 
TUESDAY, AUGUST 28, 2012 
PAGE 2 
 

 
 
 

Commission Member Franklin stepped down during the consideration of Agenda 

Item 12-127PF, due to a possible conflict of interest. 

The Commission approved the motion by Vice-Chairman Lindsay, seconded by 

Commission Member Kochalka, to approve the following Consent Item with a vote of 6-

0-1, Commission Member Franklin abstained. 

12-127PF  Consider/Discuss/Act on the Request by Sanchez & 
Associates, on 12-127PF Behalf of Estate of Allen 
Crutcher Wynn, for Approval of a Preliminary-Final Plat 
for Lot 1, Block A, Lot 2, Block A, Lots 1-6, Block B, Lots 
1-9, Block C, and Lots 1-12, Block D, of the Wynn Ridge 
Addition, Approximately 49.00 Acres, Located on the 
East Side of Ridge Road and Approximately 1,600 Feet 
North of Virginia Parkway.  

 
Commission Member Franklin returned to the Council dias. 

END OF CONSENT 
 
Chairman Clark continued the meeting with the Regular Items on the agenda. 

11-176Z3  Conduct a Public Hearing to Consider/Discuss/Act on 
the Request by Out of Space Self Storage, on Behalf of 
RWMD Limited Partnership and Oyen Huang, for 
Approval of a Request to Rezone Approximately 4.50 
Acres, from "PD" - Planned Development District to 
"PD" - Planned Development District, Generally to 
Modify the Development Standards and Allowed Uses, 
Located on the West Side of Hardin Boulevard and 
Approximately 300 Feet North of McKinney Ranch 
Parkway.  

 
Mr. Michael Quint, Director of Planning for the City of McKinney, explained the 

proposed rezoning request.  He stated that Staff recommends approval of the proposed 

rezoning request with the special ordinance provisions as listed in the staff report.   

Commission Member Kochalka asked if there is a concept plan for this site.  Mr. 

Quint stated that there was not a land plan included on the current “PD” – Planned 

Development District. 

Commission Member Bush asked about the two phases being proposed for this 

project.  Mr. Michael Quint explained the two proposed phases.  Commission Member 

Bush had screening concerns on the property to the north, where one of the buildings 

was proposed to be built in phase two.  Mr. Quint explained that the applicant is 

proposing to use an alternate screening device until the building is constructed in that 

location.     



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES 
TUESDAY, AUGUST 28, 2012 
PAGE 3 
 

 
 
 

Mr. Joe Feagin, 577 Country Club Road, Fairview, TX  75069, explained the 

proposed rezoning request.  He stated that they had contacted the adjacent 

neighborhood to discuss why this project would be advantageous at this location.  Mr. 

Feagin stated that their proposed project would not generate very much traffic on 

Aspen.  He stated that the main entrance would be on Hardin.  Mr. Feagin stated that 

the Aspen entrance would be used only for emergency and trash vehicles.  He 

explained that self-storage is not a high volume business and gave examples of how 

most renters do not visit the units very often.  Mr. Feagin explained that they propose to 

install additional landscaping along Aspen to make it more favorable to the community.  

He felt this project would be good for the community. 

Commission Member Thompson asked about the height of the storage buildings.  

Mr. Feagin stated that the storage buildings would be one story. 

Vice-Chairman Lindsay asked about the proposed screening on the site.  Mr. 

Feagin stated that they plan to install a seven-foot wrought iron fence and plant 

evergreen trees every three feet.  He explained that building all of the storage buildings 

on the north side of the property in one phase might cause an issue with the mix of units 

needed; therefore, they plan to build them in two phases to anticipate their need for 

specific types of units. 

Commission Member Kochalka asked about the proposed operating hours.  Mr. 

Feagin stated that it would be standard operating hours and gave the example of 7:00 

a.m. to 7:00 p.m.  He stated that there would be a caretaker on site for security 

purposes that would live in the second floor of the office building on the property.  

Commission Member Kochalka wanted to clarify that when the facility closed in the 

evening that there would not be any access to the storage units.  Mr. Feagin stated that 

was correct. 

Commission Member Kochalka asked about lighting on the site.  Mr. Feagin 

stated that they would follow the City of McKinney standards and the property would be 

well lit for security purposes.   

Commission Member Kochalka asked if Mr. Feagin had traffic statistics for a 

storage unit verses a shopping center.  Commission Member Kochalka commented that 

he believed that a storage facility would have significantly less traffic.  Mr. Feagin gave 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES 
TUESDAY, AUGUST 28, 2012 
PAGE 4 
 

 
 
 

an example of national standards for the amount of time someone usually rents a unit 

and how often they visit the facility.  He stated that the number of trips to the storage 

facility is very low.  Mr. Feagin also stated that they are only required to have four 

parking spaces.   

Commission Member Kochalka asked about the architectural look of the office 

building.  Mr. Feagin briefly explained how he came up with the design based off of the 

name of the facility.     

Commission Member Kochalka asked for clarification on the landscape plan for 

the property.  Mr. Feagin stated that the City of McKinney requires one canopy tree 

every 40’; however, they plan to plant one canopy tree every 30’ plus groupings of 

ornamental trees and shrubbery along Aspen.   

Chairman Robert Clark opened the public hearing and called for comments. 

The following five citizens spoke in opposition of the proposed rezoning request.  

These citizens had concerns about the proposed location being near an elementary 

school and a residential neighborhood, potential criminal element, potential hazardous 

materials being stored, decrease in property values, and increased traffic near the 

elementary school.  They appreciated that the applicant wants to minimize the visual 

impact of the facility and offer to discount rental fees for the adjacent neighborhood 

residents. 

• Mr. Patrick Clay, 2317 Sherbrooke Lane, McKinney, TX  75070 

• Sue Ellen Stokes, 2708 Jacques Lane, McKinney, TX  75070 

• Barbara Moore, 3612 Kathryn Way, McKinney, TX  75070 

• Robert Masterson, 3805 McClintick Road, McKinney, TX  75070 

• Rod Portillo, 3713 McClintick Road, McKinney, TX  75070 

 
Mr. Thad Helsley, 1650 W. Virginia Street, McKinney, TX  75069, stated that he 

was representing the McKinney Independent School District (MISD).  He stated that Mr. 

Feagin had tried to address most of the McKinney Independent School District’s 

concerns.  Mr. Helsley stated that they had concerns about a potential alley condition 

between the storage facility and the adjacent residential neighborhood.  He stated that 

he believe that Mr. Feagin planned to close off that section of property to help prevent 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES 
TUESDAY, AUGUST 28, 2012 
PAGE 5 
 

 
 
 

the children from going back there.  Mr. Helsley stated that the McKinney Independent 

School District would prefer that all of the storage units across from the McNeill 

Elementary School be built in the first phase of construction.  He stated that they have 

concerns about the entrance off of Aspen becoming another main entrance and/or exit 

for the facility over time.  Mr. Helsley stated that they have concerns over the additional 

traffic on Aspen.   

Commission Member Thompson asked if the McKinney Independent School 

District was in favor or opposition of the project.  Mr. Helsley stated that he is not 

present to object to the project, just express their concerns.   

The Commission unanimously approved the motion by Vice-Chairman Lindsay, 

seconded by Commission Member Kochalka, to close the public hearing. 

Chairman Clark asked Mr. Feagin to address concerns about the egress onto 

Aspen.  Mr. Feagin stated that they do not plan to use that entrance except for 

emergencies and for the trash vehicles.  Chairman Clark asked if this entrance would 

have a gate.  Mr. Feagin stated that it would have a gate and that they want all of their 

customers using the main entrance.  Commission Member Kochalka stated that he 

would prefer to see the trash vehicle use the main entrance on Hardin and not the 

Aspen entrance.   

Commission Member Kochalka asked about the median openings on Hardin 

near this proposed project.  Mr. Quint pointed out the median openings. 

Vice-Chairman Lindsay asked about the second phase proposed and if they 

might consider building it all in one phase.  Mr. Feagin explained that they preferred to 

build in two phases to know what type of units would be needed the most at the facility. 

Commission Member Kochalka asked about the proposed fencing.  Mr. Feagin 

stated that the whole property would be secured with a fence.  Mr. Quint explained that 

there would be a screening device to block the 25’ between the proposed project and 

the adjacent neighbor’s wood fence to block the entrance into this space. 

Commission Member Thompson asked about the current zoning uses on the 

property.  Mr. Quint stated that the current zoning allows for “C” – Planned Center 

District uses.  He stated that a storage facility is an allowed use with a Special Use 

Permit (SUP) on the property and is not allowed by right.   



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES 
TUESDAY, AUGUST 28, 2012 
PAGE 6 
 

 
 
 

Commission Member Bush stated that this is the nicest mini warehouse that he 

has seen.  He expressed concerns over the adjacent neighborhood residents not being 

in favor of the project.  Chairman Clark stated that only five residents had spoken in 

opposition at this meeting and he did not feel that necessarily represented the whole 

neighborhood’s reaction to the project.   

Commission Members Thompson and Bush stated that they would not want this 

project built behind their homes. 

Commission Member Kochalka mentioned that there are a lot of businesses 

allowed in a “C” – Planned Center District.  He felt that the Hardin Road main entrance 

should be the only entrance allowed except for emergencies.  Commission Member 

Kochalka expressed concerns about additional traffic on Aspen. 

Vice-Chairman Lindsay expressed concerns that the facility could change their 

minds at a later time and allow access to the entrance on Aspen.  Mr. Quint stated that 

it could be included in the zoning of the property that this entrance is for emergency use 

only; however, it would be hard to enforce by the City of McKinney Police Department 

and Code Enforcement.     

On a motion by Commission Member Thompson, seconded by Commission 

Member Bush, the Commission voted 5-2 to recommend denial of the rezoning request 

as recommended by Staff.  Chairman Clark and Commission Member Kochalka voted 

against the motion. 

Chairman Clark stated that the recommendation of the Planning and Zoning 

Commission will be forwarded to the City Council meeting on September 18, 2012.  He 

stated that it will take a super-majority vote from City Council to approve the request. 

12-141SP  Conduct a Public Hearing to Consider/Discuss/Act on 
the Request by Cross Engineering Consultants, Inc., on 
Behalf of DFA, Ltd., for Approval of a Site Plan for the 
Oak Hollow Office Warehouse Park, Approximately 3.20 
Acres, Located Approximately 370 Feet South of 
Wilmeth Road and on the West Side of State Highway 5 
(McDonald Street). (REQUEST TO BE TABLED)  

 
Mr. Brandon Opiela, Senior Planner for the City of McKinney, explained that Staff 

recommends that the public hearing be continued and the item be tabled until the 

September 11, 2012 Planning and Zoning Commission meeting per the applicant’s 

request. 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES 
TUESDAY, AUGUST 28, 2012 
PAGE 7 
 

 
 
 

Chairman Robert Clark opened the public hearing and called for comments. 

There being none, on a motion by Vice-Chairman Lance Lindsay, seconded by 

Commission Member Rick Franklin, the Commission voted unanimously to continue the 

public hearing and table the proposed site plan request until the September 11, 2012 

Planning and Zoning Commission meeting.  

00-224SP  Conduct a Public Hearing to Consider/Discuss/Act on 
the Request by Gary and Natalya Fagan, for Approval of 
the Site Plan for an Alternate Screening Device for a 
Multi-Family Development, Approximately 0.40 Acres, 
Located on the East Side of Tennessee Street and 
Approximately 200 Feet South of Elm Street.  

 
Mr. Brandon Opiela, Senior Planner for the City of McKinney, explained the 

proposed site plan.  He stated that Staff recommends approval of the proposed site plan 

as conditioned in the staff report. 

Commission Member Hilton asked about the fencing material being considered.  

Mr. Opiela stated that it would be a straight picket fence. 

Ms. Natalya Fagan, 2104 Camden, McKinney, TX  75070, briefly explained the 

proposed site plan request. 

Chairman Clark opened the public hearing and called for comments.  There 

being none, the Commission unanimously approved the motion by Commission 

Member Kochalka, seconded by Commission Member Thompson, to close the public 

hearing and approve the proposed site plan as conditioned in the staff report.   

Chairperson Clark stated that the Planning and Zoning Commission is the final 

approval authority for the proposed site plan. 

12-137SP  Conduct a Public Hearing to Consider/Discuss/Act on 
the Request Cross Engineering Consultants, Inc., on 
Behalf of Manner Plastics, L.P., for Approval of a Site 
Plan for an Expansion to a Manufacturing and Office 
Building (Manner Plastics), Approximately 10.52 Acres, 
Located on the Northeast Corner of Interchange Street 
and Interchange Way.  

 
Mr. Brandon Opiela, Senior Planner for the City of McKinney, explained the 

proposed site plan.  He stated that Staff recommends approval of the proposed site plan 

as conditioned in the staff report. 

Mr. Jonathan Hake, Cross Engineering Consultants, 131 S. Tennessee Street, 

McKinney, TX  75071, stated that he concurred with the staff report.  



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES 
TUESDAY, AUGUST 28, 2012 
PAGE 8 
 

 
 
 

Chairman Clark opened the public hearing and called for comments.  There 

being none, the Commission unanimously approved the motion by Commission 

Member Thompson, seconded by Commission Member Hilton, to close the public 

hearing and approve the proposed site plan as conditioned in the staff report.   

Chairperson Clark stated that the Planning and Zoning Commission is the final 

approval authority for the proposed site plan. 

Mr. Michael Quint, Director of Planning, recognized the commission members 

who were reappointed for another term and mentioned that there would be a new 

member replacing Vice-Chairman Lindsay when he is appointed to the McKinney 

Economic Development Corporation in October. 

Chairman Clark declared the meeting adjourned at 7:26 p.m. 

 

                                                                                      
________________________________ 

                 ROBERT S. CLARK 
                      Chairman 
 
 

                                                                  


